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Monday, July 7, 2007


--- Upon commencing at 9:34 a.m.


MS. NOWINA:  Please be seated.


Good morning, everyone.  The Board is sitting today in the matter of application EB-2007-0051, pursuant to section 98 of the Ontario Energy Board Act, submitted by Hydro One Networks Inc.  The application is for an interim order granting access to land in connection with the applicant's request for leave to construct a new transmission line between the Bruce Power facility and the Milton switching station.


The Board sits to hear submissions on the issues and to consider if the proposed issues list is appropriate in defining the framework for the hearing process.


My name is Pamela Nowina.  I will be the presiding member in this hearing.  Joining me on the Panel are Board members Cynthia Chaplin and Bill Rupert.  May I have the appearances, please.


APPEARANCES:

MR. ENGELBERG:  Good morning, Madam Chair.  I'm Michael Engelberg.  I appear on behalf of Hydro One Networks Inc., the applicant, and I have with me on my right Gary Schneider, and on my left, Andrew Skalski, both from Hydro One Networks.  


MS. NOWINA:  Thank you, Mr. Engelberg.


MR. WAQUE:  Stephen Waque here for The PowerLine Connections Group and all of the individual owners listed therein.


MS. NOWINA:  Thank you, Mr. Waque.


MR. STEPHENSON:  Good morning, Madam Chair, Richard Stephenson, counsel for Power Workers' Union.  With me this morning is Mr. Bayu Kidane.


MS. NOWINA:  Thank you, Mr. Stephenson.


MR. MACINTOSH:  David MacIntosh for Energy Probe Research Foundation.


MS. NOWINA:  Thank you, Mr. MacIntosh.  Board counsel?


MS. SEBALJ:  Kristi Sebalj, Board counsel.  I'm accompanied by Zora Crnojacki and David Richmond.


MS. NOWINA:  Thank you, Ms. Sebalj.  Before we begin, are there any preliminary matters?  None.


MS. SEBALJ:  We have none.


MS. NOWINA:  The issue list as proposed is attached to Procedural Order No. 1.  I am going to read it into the record.  There is a grammatical error in the second issue in the Procedural Order, and I will correct that.  

"1.  The OEB Act allows the Board to authorize early access to land to allow an applicants 'to make such surveys and examinations as are necessary for fixing the site of the work.'  Are the early access activities proposed by Hydro One appropriate?"

"2.  What, if any, are the conditions regarding the early access activities that the Board should attach to its order under section 98(1).1(a)?"


Those are the issues.  We'll begin with submissions by Hydro One.

SUBMISSIONS BY MR. ENGELBERG:

MR. ENGELBERG:  Madam Chair, Hydro One is satisfied with the issues list as proposed, other than a few words we propose to add to paragraph 1 for purposes of clarification.


We would just suggest that the second sentence of paragraph 1 be changed to say:  "Are the early access activities proposed by Hydro One, as described in paragraph 2 of the application, appropriate?"  


Just to clarify, they are the activities originally asked for by Hydro One when the application was filed.  


MS. NOWINA:  All right.  That's the total submission, Mr. Engelberg?


MR. ENGELBERG:  Yes, thank you.


MS. NOWINA:  Thank you.  Anyone supporting Hydro One's position that wishes to go next?


Mr. Waque.


SUBMISSIONS BY MR. WAQUE:

MR. WAQUE:  Thank you, Madam Chair.  I have two sets of additional issues, both of which are perhaps by way of clarification, depending on your interpretation of the original issues.  I provided copies to Board Staff.  I don't know if you have received them now.


MS. NOWINA:  We will mark those as an exhibit.


MS. SEBALJ:  The first page is in the format of an e-mail to PowerLine file; subject, issues list for permission to access.  We will mark that KI.1.

EXHIBIT NO. KI.1:  E-MAIL RE ISSUES LIST FOR PERMISSION TO ACCESS.

MS. SEBALJ:  And the second is entitled "PowerLine Connections issues list application for access (section 98 of OEB Act)", and we will mark that as KI.2.

EXHIBIT NO. KI.2:  DOCUMENT ENTITLED "POWERLINE CONNECTIONS ISSUES LIST APPLICATION FOR ACCESS (SECTION 98 OF OEB ACT)"

MS. NOWINA:  Thank you, Ms. Sebalj.  Go ahead, Mr. Waque.


MR. WAQUE:  Thank you, Madam Chair.  Perhaps I could deal with KI1.2 first to describe to you that these are really some of the terms, as it says, proposed terms of access.  These are some of the terms that are of concern to the PowerLine Group.


You have, in your proposed list of issues, Item No. 2:  

"What, if any, are the conditions regarding the early access activities that the Board should attach to its order?"


So this would be -- if you interpret that as a discussion of the activities and an ultimate prescription or definition of the conditions, these are some of the conditions that would be addressed at the hearing as proposed by the PowerLine Group.


So it's potentially by way of further explication of what we understand the types of conditions that would be before the Board.


It is put before you really as a precaution to ensure that the landowners that I represent are not contemplating a Board hearing to discuss conditions, and then come to the hearing, and then find the conditions aren't open for discussion or at least submission.


So we thought that was a useful precaution to set that out for you, and we're in the Board's hands as to whether you would just receive that and acknowledge that is what we intend to present as the appropriate conditions, or whether you would want to expand Issue No. 2 to list them with some particularity.  


I don't have any strong preference in that regard, because I think it's fairly plain that it is by way of explanation or expansion on Issue No. 2.



MS. NOWINA:  Before you continue, Mr. Waque, has Mr. Engelberg had an opportunity to see this before right now?


MR. WAQUE:  Unfortunately, he just got it just before we started this morning, so he hasn't had a lengthy period to consider it.


MS. NOWINA:  All right.  I would like his submissions on it this morning.  So, Mr. Engelberg, if you need a few minutes before we come back to you, let me know that and we can take a break to accommodate that.


MR. ENGELBERG:  I will do that, but I think we won't need any extra time, Madam Chair.


MS. NOWINA:  All right, thank you.  Mr. Waque, you can continue.


MR. WAQUE:  Thank you, Madam Chair.


So dealing with K1.1.  This is worthy, I think, this morning of a bit more of a presentation from me as to what's intended and why it is put forward, although it could also be said to be an explanation or an expansion on the word "appropriate", what is appropriate in the circumstances.

But given the previous decisions the Board has made and the history of this matter to date, we thought it would be prudent to add these as additional issues.  So in this case, I am not -- it's not my submission, at least; the Board will do as it deems appropriate -- but it is not my submission that you really receive this as clarification.  It is my submission that you add these as specific issues.


Now, by way of assisting the Board in understanding the perspective of the group I represent, we understand that the Board's orders on the preliminary motions have indicated that the Board looks upon its procedure as a separate process with some need to coordinate, in terms of timing, other processes, but not subject to or directed by other processes.


So our perspective on that is that of course it follows that if the Board is relying on other processes to determine socio-economic factors with respect to route selection, such as might be dealt with in the EA, or property issues that might be dealt with under the Expropriations Act, that those processes, although they're separate from what the Board is doing, should be respected as much as possible by the Board process.


If the Board is depending on those other processes to assess matters and determine fairness in other contexts, then that reliance calls for respect and attention to those processes, as well. 

The permission to enter or the permission to access is clearly a matter of the Board's discretion and certain factors will weigh into the Board's discretion.  Of course from the owners' point of view, it authorizes what would otherwise be at law a trespass.  It is a significant intrusion into property rights.  And although it is not pursuant to the Expropriations Act, it is akin to that kind of interference.  


So in addressing that, our respectful suggestion is the Board have consideration for, in addition to its issue 1, four other issues and if I can just review each of them briefly.  I apologize for the grammatical errors that are present here, as well.  


The first question is:  For what property should the Board exercise its discretion to permit access?  


That's the first part of that issue.  The PowerLine group considers that each permissioned access, each property is a matter of significance and fundamental importance to that property owner.  It is, as I suggested, an interference in that property owner's rights which are substantive.  


So it should be a question before the Board as to what properties we are dealing with.  Then if it is a question before the Board as to what properties we're dealing with, it follows:  What independent criteria should be used to identify those properties that are subject to that interference?  


Obviously the Board has discretion to exercise; it must have a basis for exercising that discretion.  And we know today that the Board -- or up to this point at least 

-- I derive, from my reading of the Board's findings and orders to date, that it considers itself strictly limited to the statutory framework of the Energy Board Act.  But as I -- to have a little resonance with my opening submission, the Board is operating, it understands, in the context of other appropriate processes which determine other matters.  


The Board should not exercise its discretion without reference to that, because it is depending on those other processes to do fairness; because it now suggests, in its findings, that it does not have within its mandate the full scope of the fairness equation.  


So if that were the issue, we would go on to submit to the Board or make submissions to the Board at that time, in particular the relationship of the property as being relevant to the EA process or the -- in other words, if the Board is exercising its discretion to permit access to a particular property, ought it to consider how that particular property or where that particular property stands in the EA process?


Issue No. 2:  Can the Board make a determination on issue 1 prior to the issuance by the Minister of the Environment of the approved terms of reference - I admit this is a little bit by way of argument because it suggests some reasons why the Board should not do it - without granting a positive approval, which advances one of the options that the EA will study over other options?



I emphasize that, because the Board has said other processes, the EA process will determine the socio-economic impacts of alternative routes.  Well, should the Board be putting one route over other routes by approving permissions to access only properties on one route?  As matters now stand, we understand that the Board is being asked by Hydro One just to approve properties on one route.  In other words, Hydro One is saying:  We like this route.  We are advancing this route.  We want permission to access properties on that route.  No other routes.  


The EA process is supposed to be a fair, open and unbiased adjudication of what route is appropriate.  Well, in the EA process Hydro will only have permission to access on one route and will only have detailed information on one route which potentially prejudices a view of that route as opposed to other routes.  


It's perfectly appropriate for Hydro, if it has done the necessary work and has a reasonable opinion -- and I make no comment on whether it has or hasn't on either point -- to prefer a route.  But it is not appropriate for the various tribunals and judicial and administrative processes deciding which route is appropriate to bias and preference of one route over the other.  


So the concern is that because Hydro One is asking for permission to access one route and not all routes, that that will be a positive approval which advances one of the EA options over the others.  


Item B is a matter which may seem remote to Hydro, because it presumes approval, or at least is optimistic about getting approval, but it is always possible that Hydro could be before this Board seeking to have permission to access one route which will not be part of the approved terms of reference for the EA study.  The Minister, in the Minister's discretion, could say that, well we're not going to include as within of the options to be dealt with in the EA study, the route that Hydro prefers yet Hydro will have had permission to enter all of the properties and study them from the Energy Board for no good purpose, in effect.  


The first grammatical error here is that it should be:   "Will not be subject..." under 2(b). 


2(c) is another perspective really on (a), that owners on different options -- and I mean different optioned routes or different options for routes -- for the power line will be in a disadvantageous position, before the Energy Board and the environmental assessment process, if there is more information about one route or another route.  


So given those considerations, the question that would ultimately be for the Board's determination at the oral hearing would be:  If that's the case, if these matters are proven out, would it be an appropriate exercise of the Board's discretion to grant the permission for access at this time?  Or on the basis requested?  And that way, each owner who is impacted by the request for permission to access would know that the Board had considered the relationship to the other processes in relationship to their property.  


What the Board has determined in its findings on the motions to stay is its general discretion under the Act.  It has not considered its exercise of discretion under any particular aspect or any particular authority, and it has not considered it in relation to any particular property.  


In considering its exercise of discretion in relationship to particular properties, it's my respectful submission that this issue of relationship to the EA process is appropriate.  


Whether or not that determines the Board's order in the way that the PowerLine Group would submit is another question.  It is simply a matter of whether these owners will have an opportunity to raise their concerns about these matters before the Board.  


Item No. 2 referred to the issuance of the approved terms of reference and Issue No. 3 refers to the draft terms of reference.  


It's really another level of discretion that is available to the Energy Board.  The Energy Board might be content if it knows the draft terms of reference to understand what's in play, as it were, in the environmental assessment process as opposed to what will be permitted to proceed with the approved terms of reference, subject to the Minister's discretion, and it is a concern of the owners I represent that the Board would proceed without even knowing what is in play, because there is another public and administrative process ongoing, in terms of consultation, in terms of consultation at open houses and in terms of consultation with staff of the Ministry of the Environment, concerning the establishment of terms of reference, and that has a process that we all should, of course, respect.


Item No. 4 is in the alternative, in effect.  It says:   

"If the Board does choose to grant the permission to access before the EA process has advanced, how should that impact the conditions for access?"


In other words, in exercising its discretion about conditions, ought the Board to consider such things as, in an extreme case, Gee, we let someone on a property that wasn't even really a candidate site.  Because, of course, we all understand that the public interest in extraordinary circumstances requires that individual landowners might have their property rights displaced in order for the public interest to be advanced.  But it doesn't generally contemplate, in my respectful view, that owners have their property rights displaced because the public interest may be advanced - or could be perhaps advanced - or because the proponent thinks it would help it in advancing it. 


That's what we're doing or that's what the Board would be doing if it considered exercising its discretion without considering where we are in the environmental assessment process and whether the particular property entered onto will be one that will be a candidate site for the route, as approved by the environmental assessment process which the Board says that it is relying on, and appropriately so, in its decision with respect to the motion with respect to a stay.


So, in summary, with respect to these additional interests, Madam Chair and Members of the Board, the landowners who I represent are seeking to have an opportunity to come before the Board and have the Board exercise what they understand to be a discretionary authority to permit access or not to permit access, giving full consideration to all of the facts and circumstances; not only their particular facts and circumstances, but how they are impacted, if at all, by other processes and how those other processes are advanced, because the Board has said it is for the owners to look to those other processes, to some extent, to find fairness and appropriate treatment.


So the owners would come back to the Board and say, Fair enough, we're to look to the EA process.  Please consider in exercising your discretion where the EA process is, so that we're satisfied that you have taken that and the impacts into account when you make an order with respect to our property.


So the issues suggested in K1.1 are intended to provide the landowners with the assurance that they will be able to come to the Board at the oral hearing and make submissions with respect to the exercise of the Board's discretion in that context, and they are respectfully submitted to you as appropriate issues on that basis.


MS. NOWINA:  Thank you, Mr. Waque.


Mr. MacIntosh, are you going to make submissions?


MR. MACINTOSH:  No, Madam Chair.


MS. NOWINA:  Mr. Stephenson, are you going to make submissions?


MR. STEPHENSON:  No, Madam Chair.


MS. NOWINA:  All right.  Ms. Sebalj.


MS. SEBALJ:  We have no submissions.


QUESTIONS FROM THE BOARD:

MR. RUPERT:  Mr. Waque, just a clarifying question on, I guess, all of your four points on KI.1.  If today you had in your hand a draft terms of reference for the environmental assessment that included the route that is part of Hydro One's application, which ones of these questions or issues on KI.1 would fall away?


MR. WAQUE:  Three.


MR. RUPERT:  Only 3?


MR. Waque:  Yes.


MR. RUPERT:  Not 4?  I wasn't sure what the word "advanced" meant in 4.


MR. WAQUE:  I understand your point, Mr. Rupert, but the point is that in exercising your discretion about appropriate conditions, you should do that in view of where the process is.


So if you had the draft terms of reference, then you would take that into account, in our submission, in exercising the discretion.


So it may not be a point in our favour, but it would be an appropriate thing for the Board to consider in setting what the conditions are.


MR. RUPERT:  Okay.  And just so I am clear, 2(b), would that also stay on your list?


MR. WAQUE:  Well, they would be subject to EA study, so that would fall off, as well.


MR. RUPERT:  Okay, thank you.


MS. NOWINA:  Mr. Engelberg, reply.


REPLY SUBMISSIONS BY MR. ENGELBERG:

MR. ENGELBERG:  Thank you, Madam Chair.  I would like to go in the same order my friend did, working backwards with Exhibit KI.2, the issues list, the proposed terms of access.


In Hydro One's respectful submission, the issues list, proposed issues list, issued by the Board, Item No. 2, "What, if any, are the conditions regarding the early access activities that the Board should attach to its order?", already contemplates that at the hearing on July 30th and 31st, conditions proposed by all parties will be the subject matter of those hearing days.  


So my submission is that it would be inappropriate at this time to add that to the issues list.  It would be redundant.


Hydro One appreciates the fact that we have been given notice, by way of exhibit, as to the types of conditions that the PowerLine Connections Group will be proposing, but, in our submission, that doesn't add anything to Item No. 2 that is already on the issues list.  


I am advised by Hydro One that Hydro One will also have an issues list to propose for the hearing date on July 30th and 31st and does not feel that it would be appropriate to add those conditions now as being encompassed as part and parcel of Item No. 2 already on the issues list.


Now, with respect to Exhibit KI1.1, in our respectful submission, these matters are either already encompassed within the proposed issues list or have already been dealt with.


If I can start with Item No. 2 on Mr. Waque's e-mail, KI1, I would like to say, first of all, I think with respect to my friend's submissions that we're mixing up a whole bunch of different items here.


Hydro One's application for early access is under section 98(1).1 of the Ontario Energy Board Act.  That section, and indeed this entire section 98 even before the amendments that were made earlier this year, says nothing about the Environmental Assessment Act.  And as Hydro One made its submissions at the Motions Day that was held in this matter last month, the purpose of section 98(1).1 and what is stated in there is that an applicant may apply to get access to land to make such surveys and examinations as are necessary for fixing the site of the work, and as are specified in the order, as long as the applicant has applied for leave under section 92.


In my submission, the Board agreed with Hydro One's submissions in making its decision and order on motions earlier this month when the Board addressed the arguments that were made as to prematurity on the Motions Day.


All of these items advanced by my friend were argued by a number of parties talking about whether things should wait until draft terms of reference had been filed, whether the Board should wait until final terms of reference had been released.  


And what the Board decided in its decision was, if I may quote from the decision and order on motions on the access to land application, I would just like to read a few sentences:   



"However, the Board's concern..."


MR. WAQUE:  Can you give me the page?  


MR. ENGELBERG:  Page 4, sorry.  


MR. WAQUE:  Thank you.  


MR. ENGELBERG:  I will start with the, I think it is the fourth line:

"In that decision, the Board explains why it is not necessary to await the completion of the EA process, the terms of reference for the EA, or the IPSP, in advance of hearing the Leave to Construct Application.  The same reasons apply in this Access to Land Application.  However, the Board's concern expressed in the Leave to Construct Application Motions decision regarding the timing of the approval of the terms of reference of the EA does not apply in this case due to the limited scope and impact of the Access to Land Application.  

The Board finds that proceeding with the Access to Land Application in no way prejudges or predetermines the outcome of the Leave to Construct Application.  The legislative scheme explicitly contemplates the granting of an Interim Order allowing access to land in advance of the completion of a leave to construct application."


Now, I submit that those words are authority not only for the proposition that there is no need to wait and that it would not be appropriate to wait, either for the filing of a draft terms of reference or for obtaining approved terms of reference as part of a hearing on the matter of whether the Board should grant its discretion to allow early access.


Similarly, I would point out that it is our submission that tying this application in any way to the Environmental Assessment Act would be improper and limiting the purposes for which orders under section 98(1).1 are to be made by the Board or are to be considered by the Board in exercising its discretion.  


So if we can look at Exhibit KI1.1, if I can go straight to paragraph no. 2 with items (a), (b) and (c) under it.  In Hydro One's submission that is already determined, has been determined by the Board and it should not be added to the issues list for the hearing later this month, nor should it be the subject matter in any way of the hearing days already set by the Board for that.  That would be items 2 (a), (b) and (c).  


Secondly, I would argue that even if that were not the case, there is really, in practical terms, no reason for the Board to approach the problem in this way, when we say in 2(b) when it says:

"...granting access to properties which will not be subject to the EA study at all..."

Hydro One has asked for the early access order only with respect to properties along the proposed route that will be subject -- that it will be submitting in the draft reference plan in the EA.  


So there will be no properties that Hydro One has not asked to be considered on the route of the proposed EA terms of reference.  


Now, if I can go next on KI.1 to item no. 3.  In my submission, the same argument is made for item 3 as item 2, namely that that has already been determined in the Board's decision for Motions Day.  


Number 3 falls with number 2, if that is to be the disposition of this particular issue.  


Now, if I look at item number 4, in my submission, the same thing falls.  Item number 4 says: 

"If the OEB is to grant permission to access before the EA process advanced to confirm, that the site is an appropriate candidate site, how should that impact the conditions for access?"


In Hydro One's submission, that issue would be subsumed in the issue that is already in issue on the proposed issues list, namely:  

"Item no. 2:  What conditions, if any, regarding the early access activities should attach to the Board's order?"


In other words, on the date that this hearing is held on July 30th and 31st, if the opponents of Hydro One's application are able to show that certain properties along the proposed route that Hydro One has proposed should not have the same access order as other properties, because the opponents are able to satisfy the Board that certain of the activities proposed by Hydro One need not be performed on some properties, that would be dealt with by the Board, in my submission, on determining what conditions are to attach.  


The last one that I have not yet addressed is item no. 1 on KI.1, and if I may read it:

"For what properties should the Board exercise its discretion to permit access, and what independent criteria should be used to identify properties that are subject to such interference in basic property rights and, in particular, the relationship of a property to the EA process not relevant?"


I have dealt with the latter part of that proposed issue in the submissions I have already made so I don't intend to readdress them.  But for the first part, in Hydro One's submission, Hydro One has clearly asked, in the application for early access, what properties the Board should exercise its discretion to permit access.  Hydro One has filed materials with its application that was filed at the end of March to indicate what the reasons for that are, and on the hearing date that's going to be held later this month, that is exactly what is going to be argued:  Are these the properties for which the Board should exercise its discretion?  


Hydro One is not making application for any properties other than properties along the route that Hydro One has proposed.  It has been proposed by some of the intervenors in this application, in the leave to construct application, that perhaps Hydro One should have cast a broad net, and asked for leave to construct and for leave to enter a whole lot of properties, everywhere that this line could possibly go.  


Hydro One has chosen not to do that.  Hydro One has chosen to ask the Board for leave to enter as few properties as possible along one route and one route only, and if at some later date it turns out that Hydro One needs access to more properties or the line isn't going to be where it is proposed to be now, that would be a matter that the Board, in my submission, would have to deal with in the future.  If Hydro One comes back and asks for more land to enter for whatever reason, the Board would deal with that at that time.  But for now, it is a limited number of properties, only along the proposed route, and conditions for that entry are more than amply covered in the proposed issues list no. 1 and 2 that's already been issued by the Board.  


So I have no further submissions, other than to say, I think that the proposed issues list no. 1 and 2 are quite broad.  They address all of the matters that my friend has proposed to add, other than the additional items dealing with the EA process and the stage at which the EA process is in, and those matters were dealt with by the Board in its decision.  


Thank you.  


MS. NOWINA:  Thank you, Mr. Engelberg.  


Thank you for your submissions.  We will break -- 


MR. WAQUE:  Is there a right of reply, Madam Chair?


MS. NOWINA:  All right, Mr. Waque, go ahead.  


REPLY SUBMISSIONS BY MR. WAQUE:


MR. WAQUE:  I will read also from page 4 of your decision with respect to the motions to stay.  That is in the paragraph just above the one my friend read which began:

"The Board Staff submitted that a stay should only be granted in a proceeding if the application is seriously flawed."


It was the position of Board Staff that access to the land application meets all of the statutory requirements.  Board Staff pointed out that PowerLine connections and the landowners had raised important issues of substance that Board Staff submitted that these are the matters to be explored and addressed in the hearing itself.


That is what we understood was the Board's perspective on the application to stay.  An application -- which, I would remind the Board just by way of how this came to be, that PowerLine and others made submissions with respect to the application.  The Board suggested procedurally that the initial steps should be whether or not, in my respectful submission, the threshold or the criteria of the stay had been met, because of the nature of the submissions that had been made.  


The parties were invited to bring motions.  They hadn't initiated the motions.  They were invited to bring the motions.  They brought the motions in order that the matter be addressed in the way that the Board thought it most efficient and appropriate to address these matters.


So it was determined by the Board that there was no threshold issue that prevented the Board considering the exercise of its discretion, but not that it had addressed all of these matters in final form with respect to the exercise of that discretion.


My friend next referred to section 98 and the Board's authority under section 98.  And, of course, we understand that a statutory precondition for the exercise of that discretion, the filing of the application, has been met.  But we also respectfully submit that the Board has inherent discretion with respect to whether or not to permit access, that that is not an automatic obligation or -- of the Board if material is filed and a permission to construct has been made, that automatically the Board must give permission to access.


Our respectful submission is the Board retains discretion, and the question is:  What is relevant to the exercise of that discretion?


Hydro has chosen, in this instance, to proceed in what is -- what was said at the last occasion, so I won't expand on it, but just to reference it, in an extraordinary manner.  It is advancing its permission to construct well in advance of the EA process, which considers other issues of fairness and balancing of interests.  


So all of those issues of fairness and balancing of interests haven't been made yet in any other context.


So because Hydro has chosen to proceed in the way it has chosen to proceed, I don't think it has done it to convenience or to ensure it inconveniences a few landowners as possible.  It has done it for its own corporate purposes.  


But now the Board is faced with this problem where it's dependent on other processes, but not in control of the other processes.


So it is a different submission that we are making today, that in the hearing to come, the oral hearing to come on the substance of the access permissions, that these factors identified in K1.1 are relevant to the exercise of discretion.


We are not saying, as was the formal context of the earlier motion, that they are matters of such -- that so flaw the application that it cannot proceed.


We understand that the Board has made an order that says the application will proceed.  Now the question is:  What's relevant to the exercise of discretion?


In our respectful submission, what must be relevant to the exercise of discretion is its relationship, the relationship of this process to another process which the Board is relying upon to ensure fairness and appropriate treatment.


So I, again, ask that the Board consider adding all of the issues that are put forward on behalf of PowerLine.


MS. NOWINA:  Thank you, Mr. Waque.


We are going to break until 11:30, at which time we will come back and give an oral decision. 


--- Recess taken at 10:20 a.m.

--- On resuming at 11:30 a.m. 


MS. NOWINA:  Please be seated.  


Decision:   


MS. NOWINA:  The following is our decision on the issues list for this hearing.  


First, the Board agrees with both Hydro One and PowerLine connections that the issues identified in Exhibit KI.2 are covered under the proposed issues and need not be specifically added to the issues list.  The Board reminds parties to explore these and other conditions of interest in the interrogatory process.  


Regarding the issues identified in Exhibit KI.1, we note that in the Board's decision on July 4th on the motions to stay this application, the Board made a finding that these issues did not, as Mr. Waque says, make the application so flawed that it could not proceed.  However, the Board did note in that decision that the issues raised by PowerLine Connections raised a number of concerns that were potentially relevant to the proceeding, and expected those matters to be addressed during the course of this proceeding.  


We find that a number of the issues in Exhibit KI.1 clearly fall within the proposed issues list.  However, we have decided that, for clarity, one additional issue will be added to the issues list.  


The Board finds that it is unnecessary to narrow proposed issue no. 2, as Mr. Engelberg has requested.  


The Board has therefore determined that the issues list for this proceeding will be as follows:  

"1.  Is it appropriate to grant permission to access:

(a) in advance of the approved EA terms of reference; or 

(b) in advance of the submission of the proposed EA terms of reference to the Ministry Of the Environment?  

"2.  The OEB Act allows the Board to authorize early access to land to allow an applicant to make such surveys and examinations as are necessary for fixing the site of the work.  Are the early access activities proposed for Hydro One appropriate?  

"3.  What, if any, conditions regarding the early access activities should the Board attach to its order under section 98(1).1(a)?"


Are there any questions?  


That completes our hearing today.  Thank you very much.  


--- Whereupon the hearing adjourned at 11:35 a.m. 
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